
[PROTECT] 

 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Select Committee: The 
Wolverhampton Pound - 
Procurement, Contract 
Management, and 
Commissioning  
15 December 2021 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? NO Type of meeting Select 
Committee 

Venue 
 

Microsoft Teams 

Membership 
 
Councillor Susan Roberts MBE  
Councillor Paul Appleby  
Councillor Jonathan Crofts  
Councillor Valerie Evans  
Councillor Barbara McGarrity QN  
Councillor Rita Potter  
Councillor Zee Russell  
Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman  
Councillor Ellis Turrell  
 
Information  
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team: 

Contact Julia Cleary 
Tel/Email julia.cleary@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 



 [PROTECT] 

 
 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Agenda 
 

PART 1 – Items open to all attendees 
 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Welcome and Introductions  
 

2 Apologies for Absence  
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 

4 Update from Previous Meeting  
 

5 Commissioning - Adults Services (Pages 1 - 12) 
 [To receive a presentation from Becky Wilkinson, Deputy Director of Adult Services 

and Alicia Wood, Head of Service – Adult’s Commissioning and Market 
Management] 
 

6 Commissioning - Children's Services (Pages 13 - 64) 
 [To receive a presentation from Andrew Wolverson, Head of Service Children's 

Strategy and Partnership, and Steven Larking, Children’s Commissioning 
Transformation Lead] 
 

7 Date of Next Meeting  
 [The next meeting will be held on Wednesday 12 January 2022 and will consider 

business support, training, and skills] 
 



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Select Committee: Wolverhampton Pound
Adults Commissioning: The role it can play in 
meeting our strategic priorities

Becky Wilkinson (Deputy Director Adults Services)  
& Alicia Wood (Head of Adults Commissioning & Market Management), 

December 2021

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 5



Every Council has the duty to ensure the care needs of its adult residents are met.

This includes:

• ensuring that any external care services or resources, offer choice, quality and 
are value for money.

• ensuring the sufficiency of externally commissioned care services and resources

The Care Act statutory guidance states that 'high quality, personalised 
Care and Support can only be achieved where there is a vibrant, 
responsive market of services available'. The Local Authority role is 
seen as critical and under section 5 of the Care Act, the duty to shape 
and maintain an efficient and effective market of services for meeting 
care and support needs in the local area is firmly placed with them.

P
age 2



The external care market that is shaped should ensure that any person 
requiring Care and Support/Support services:

 Has a variety of providers supplying a variety of services to choose from.

 Has a variety of high-quality services to choose from; and

 Has sufficient information to make an informed decision about how to 
meet the needs in question.

The duty applies in relation to services that the Local Authority 
commissions directly, but also to other non-commissioned services in its 
area (including those used by self-funders), universal services and 
services provided by partners (such as health or charitable services) 
that together create the marketplace.

P
age 3



How Adult’s Commissioning 
can support Council Plans 

Understand our adult residents social care needs, 
and commission the right service at the right time 
with a focus upon, prevention and where possible 
working with partners through integrated 
commissioning in structures and processes.

Complement and support the transformation of 
Adult’s Services to ensure our residents are part of 
a strong, resilient and healthy community, putting 
people first, inspiring trust and confidence that 
resident will have their care needs met.

Market engagement and provider development to 
create locally based providers of choice and 
support jobs and investment in our City

Joint Commissioning with the CCG and Public 
Health
Review and continue to place renewable 
contractual targets and KPIs into commissioned 
services and implement a robust quality assurance 
framework

P
age 4



The role of commissioning

wolverhampton.gov.uk

Commissioning is the strategic activity of:
- assessing the needs of a population
- allocating resources
- involving a range of partners, stakeholders, people 

who use services (or have care needs) and 
communities 

- securing services or resources to meet identified 
needs 

- monitoring and evaluating services
- commissioning is simply making the best use of 

resources to meet need.

P
age 5



Why Commission?

wolverhampton.gov.uk

- Council run (in house) services cannot meet all of the care 
needs of residents in Wolverhampton

- Procurement rules to put opportunities to provide care out to 
tender are a legal requirement to ensure fair competition. This 
results in the most appropriate providers delivering care 

- Unprecedented financial challenges as a result of reducing 
budgets and increasing demand

- Need to constantly strive to implement more effective and 
efficient ways of working

- Maximise opportunities to support the local economy

- Value for money for residents / tax payers

- Deliver better outcomes for residents and users of services

P
age 6



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Analyse
Plan
Do
Review

Commissioning Cycle

P
age 7



Commissioned Care provision in Wolverhampton
Home care
Direct payments (employment and 
payroll support)
Residential and nursing care homes for 
older people
Residential and nursing with dementia 
care homes for older people
Extra care schemes
Supported living
Under 65’s residential and nursing 
homes
Community activities for older people
Community opportunities for adults 
with complex needs
Support for hospital patient flow
Review and implement the Carers 
Strategy

Supported living for people with forensic 
needs 
Telecare (in homes)
Responder service 
Advocacy support
Healthwatch
Adult Fostering
Peer support for people with mental 
health needs
Support for people with complex needs 
to remain in their home (and prevent 
homelessness)
Dedicated dementia support resources 
and services
Developing and implementing the 
Assistive Technology Strategy

P
age 8



The commissioning team within City of Wolverhampton Council provides the 
commissioning activity to provide externally commissioned services, since 2019 the 
teams comprise of:

• A children's commissioning team
• An adults commissioning team 
• A quality assurance and compliance team 
• A personalised support team (which brokers the available commissioned services 

and resources 

During COVID 19 these teams were critical to ensure our residents had their care 
needs met and also to support our providers to introduce testing, understand 
required actions for visitors to homes, the vaccination roll out and to manage outbreaks. 
The adults team has also administered the governments short term IPF grants and 
workforce grants.

To ensure commissioning reflects the priorities of the new Families Directorate, the 
teams are being reviewed and restructured in 2022.

P
age 9



Impact of COVID 19 and futureproofing care
Many care providers including the council run services have reported difficulties with 
recruiting and retaining carers and staff

Wolverhampton Cares was launched aiming to support all carers (employed and family) 

www.wolverhamptoncares.co.uk.

A project group has formed to identify and implement actions

These include:

• Promoting care as a career and working with the West Midlands Combined Authority in 
partnership with education providers and Wolves at Work to develop an attractive offer

• Supporting unpaid carers to access leisure facilities, discounts, respite and advice and 
support 

P
age 10



The local impact
• Current procurement includes a requirement to demonstrate 

social value within every tender (local employment/use of local 
provision)

• Majority of these commissioned resources and services are 
delivered to residents living in Wolverhampton by locally based 
providers (with the exception of some very specialist residential 
and nursing homes).

• The majority of the workforce (especially for carers) are people 
who live in Wolverhampton or the neighbouring Black Country 
area.

P
age 11



Requested Support from the Select Committee 

• The current adults social care market continues to face many challenges including 
competing employment markets, rising costs and the management of outbreaks due 
to continued rates of COVID 19 infection in the community.

• The sufficiency of the care market is dependant on ensuring we support our providers, 
and to continue to ensure residents receive care to meet their needs, giving choice 
and quality and services at the right time

• The annual social care provider fee review will need to reflect the financial impact for 
providers.

• Wolverhampton Cares will aim to support the care sector including the voluntary 
sector and unpaid carers with support such as training, education, partnership 
working, offering local opportunities and other funding streams 

Commissioners wish to support the Relighting Our City Recovery Plan. For adults commissioning the 
most critical requirement is to manage sufficiency and support our locally based providers 

P
age 12



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Select Committee: Wolverhampton Pound
Children’s Commissioning: The role it can play 
in meeting our strategic priorities

Andrew Wolverson (Head of Service, Children’s Strategy and Partnerships) 
& Steve Larking (Children’s Commissioning Transformation Lead), 

December 2021

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



Children’s 
Commissioning in 
Wolverhampton

Early Intervention, Specialist support 
services, and Restorative practice are 
our approaches to supporting people 
at the right time at the right level and to 
help us strengthen families where 
children are at risk.

• Children’s Commissioners cover;
• Social Care Services and Contracts

• Residential Provision and Contracts

• Foster Care Provision and Contracts

• Early Help Services

• Supported Accommodation

• SEND Placements and Services

• Short Breaks

• Outreach

• Resource Bases and SEN Units

• Early Years places and providers

• Provider management

P
age 14



Children’s Commissioning as a strategic hub

CHILDREN’S 
COMMISSIONING

LOCAL 
AUTHORITY 

SERVICE TEAMS

LOCAL 
AUTHORITY 

PROCUREMENT

LOCAL 
AUTHORITY 

FINANCE

DATA AND 
PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION

CONTRACT 
DATA AND 
PROVIDER 

PERFORMANCE

CHILDREN & 
YOUNG 

PEOPLE’S VOICE 
AND 

EXPERIENCES

Commissioning acts as a hub to understand the 
duties, pressures, needs and experiences of a 
wide range of teams and service users

OUTPUTS
• Commission the most cost 

effective services
• Understand conflicting priorities 

and needs and brokers collective 
understanding of why decisions 
are taken

• Overseas value for money 
through initial commissioned 
service and also through contract 
management

• Acts as a hub and is best placed 
to advise senior leaders on 
emerging needs and issues, and 
supports long term planning

P
age 15



Different levels of 
commissioning

• STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING

Having oversight of the other levels 
means commissioners can identify 
emerging needs and gaps. This allows for 
longer term planning, including being well 
prepared for tendering and contract end 
dates.

• SERVICE LEVEL COMMISSIONING

Commissioners can amalgamate contract 
and performance data in service areas 
and undertake reviews that are holistic 
and integrated

• CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

This level is for Commissioning Officers as 
routine Business As Usual Commissioning, 
Procurement and Provider management. 

P
age 16



How Children’s Commissioning 
can support Council Plans 
Understand our children and young peoples 
needs, and commission the right service at the 
right time with a focus upon early years, 
prevention and early help. Integrated 
Commissioning in structures and processes.

Plan for key transition stages and ensure that our 
Children and Young People in care and with SEN 
reach their fullest potential  and work with 
employers to help them understand the benefits 
they bring to the workplace

Market engagement and provider development to 
create locally based providers of choice. 

Work with Wolverhampton Homes on Supported 
Accommodation services

Joint Commissioning with the CCG and Public 
Health

Place renewable contractual targets and KPIs into 
commissioned services

P
age 17



A CASE STUDY FOR REVIEW 
APPROACH

“A Roof Over Our Heads” Supported 
Accommodation Review

The ‘‘Roof over our Heads’ review of 
Supported Accommodation in 
Wolverhampton was led by the 
Children’s Commissioning Team and 
has sought to take a broader more 
collaborative look at Supported 
Housing for Our Young People in the 
City of Wolverhampton. 

Although in part, the catalyst for the 
review was undertaken due to an 
existing contract coming to a natural 
end, Commissioners wanted to use the 
review as an opportunity to look both 
externally (and internally), and to 
understand the existing systems, 
processes and interfaces that are a 
feature of supported accommodation at 
Wolverhampton. 

P
age 18



Requested Support from the Select Committee 

MARKET ENGAGEMENT & LOCALLY BASED PROVIDERS

• We are currently reliant on large national and regional providers who can demand 
high cost placements and services that do not meet value for money requirements.

• Across Children’s Services (including SEND) we wish to secure locally based 
providers who understand our city and our children and young people.

PRIVATE RENTED MARKET 
• The vast majority of our care leavers and those leaving supported accommodation are 

reliant on the social housing market and Wolverhampton homes. 

• We wish to embrace and work with the private rented sector to increase the offer and 
quality of secure tenancies for our children and young people.

Commissioners wish to support the Relighting Our City Recovery Plan and make two requests for 
support, advice and engagement from this select committee and its wider partners 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 21



P
age 22



P
age 23



P
age 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



P
age 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64


	Agenda
	5 Commissioning - Adults Services
	6 Commissioning - Children's Services
	Strategy


